
 1 

 

DRAFT COPY - SUBJECT TO COMMITTEE APPROVAL  
 

BOARD: TAZEWELL COUNTY 
 

COMMITTEE: LAND USE  
 

DATE/TIME: Wednesday, August 28, 2013 at 4:00 p.m. 
 

PRESENT: Chairman Terry Hillegonds, Monica Connett,  John Redlingshafer, Andrew 
Rinehart, and Greg Sinn.  K. Russell Crawford arrived at 4:20 p.m. 

 

ABSENT: Rosemary Palmer and Sue Sundell 
 

STAFF PRESENT: Kristal Deininger, Community Development Administrator; Jaclynn 
Workman, Tazewell County Field Inspector 

  

OTHERS PRESENT: David Zimmerman, Tazewell County Board Chairman;  Nick Graff, Tazewell 
County Board Member; John Ackerman, Tazewell County Board Member;  
Evelyn Neavear, Tazewell County Health Department 

           

CALL TO ORDER:  Chairman Hillegonds called the meeting to Order at 4:00 p.m. 
 

MINUTES:   Moved by Redlingshafer, seconded by Rinehart, to approve the minutes of 

the July 9, 2013 Land Use Meeting.  On voice vote, motion declared 

carried.  
COMM DEVP ADMIN: 
DRAFT Building & Property  
Maintenance Code  Administrator Deininger presented a draft Building and Property 

Maintenance Code to the Committee for their review, input and discussion.  
Ms. Deininger stated she wanted all types of plans submitted for staff to 
review and inspect as a form of “checks and balances” for anyone that may 
try to deviate from the code.  Ms. Deininger said with the adoption of the 
proposed code, a panel of 5 certified individuals would be required to address 
any appeals of the code, whereas now, the ZBA handles appeals of the 
Commercial Code. 

 
    Chairman Hillegonds stated his concerns regarding plan submittals for 

plumbing, electrical and HVAC for one and two family dwellings.  Mr. 
Hillegonds said his goal was to make this adoption and implementation 
process as easy and possible on the citizens and contractors.  Mr. Hillegonds 
added that the County had an obligation to ensure safe construction for 
citizens.  Mr. Hillegonds stated he disagreed with the removal of “Reviewed 
for Code Compliance” as he, also speaking as a contractor, would like the 
assurance of knowing any plans submitted were thoroughly reviewed.  Mr. 
Hillegonds added he was not in agreement that plans should be resubmitted 
for small changes, as small changes do often take place during construction, 
however significant changes should require resubmittal.   

 
    Evelyn Neavear, Tazewell County Health Department stated she was in 

support of the proposed codes, especially the plumbing code as most County 
homes were utilizing septic systems, and the plumbing contractors only 
provide plumbing to septic systems within 5’ from the structure.  Ms. 



 2 

Neavear said anything beyond 5’ was a septic contractor’s responsibility, and 
by having plans to review, it would alleviate plumbers from installing septic 
lines at the wrong elevations, thereby causing improper functioning septic 
systems.  Ms. Neavear added the County had a Code in place that addressed 
some of the same issues as the proposed Property Maintenance Code, 
however, the Property Maintenance Code proposed was more thorough. 

 
    Member Greg Sinn stated his concern the adoption of the proposed code 

would cause major grief in the community. 
 
    Member John Redlingshafer stated his concern of delay if a plan resubmittal 

were needed during the construction process. 
 
    County Board Chairman David Zimmerman stated his concern permitting of 

water heaters and HVAC seemed too intrusive, as these items were usually 
replaced on an emergency basis, and would be concerned of contractors not 
willing to perform emergency work at times when a permit would not be able 
to be issued. 

 
    County Board Member John Ackerman questioned if agriculture property 

would be exempt from the proposed code and questioned if the property 
maintenance code would be enforced on a complaint driven basis.  Mr. 
Ackerman also questioned how citizens would be notified of the 
implementation of the code. 

 
    Administrator Deininger stated the proposed revenue given were based upon 

2012 actual permits issued.  Ms. Deininger said the actual revenue received in 
2012 was around $33,000, and if there had been the proposed code in 2012 
revenue could have been around $97,000.  Ms. Deininger added it was a goal 
and intent that the County adoption of the proposed code would also allow 
the option for intergovernmental agreements wherein the County could assist 
smaller communities in enforcement of building codes. 

 
    Discussion was held as to what permits should and should not be required.  

Wherein Administrator Deininger stated she would create a revised list for 
the committee to review at the next committee meeting. 

 
    County Board Member Nick Graff stated he does not wish to adopt a code 

such as this if it were not going to be implemented and enforced. 
 
    Member Russ Crawford stated the code was of an advantage to the County 

and the County should proceed cautiously.  Mr. Crawford said the intent of 
adoption should be based upon the safety factors associated of having a code, 
not just the revenue that could be received. 

 
    Chairman Hillegonds stated revenue was not the driving factor for the 

adoption of the code, however, the County would need to assure it’s costs 
were covered and again stated the code was needed for safety purposes. 

 
    This item was for discussion purposes only, no action was taken. 



 3 

 

STAFF REPORT:  Administrator Deininger presented the Committee a Staff Report detailing 
revenues, expenses and other office related activity over the last month and 
year. 

 

BILLS:   Moved by Rinehart, seconded by Redlingshafer, to approve the bills for the 

Community Development Department as submitted. On voice vote, motion 

declared carried. 

 

NEXT MEETING: The next meeting of the Land Use Committee will be held on Tuesday, 

September 10, 2013 at 5:00 p.m. in the 3rd Floor Jury Meeting Room of the 
McKenzie Building. 

 

RECESS: There being no further business, the meeting recessed at 5:15 p.m. 
   

   Kristal Deininger, Secretary 
 
   Transcribed by Melissa A. Kreiter 
   Administrative Assistant  


